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EQUIFAX INC, v. FTC
EQUIFAX INC.
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION*
No. 81-7169 FTC Docket No. 8954

United States Court of Appeals, Elevenih Ci)‘cyit
“June 18, 1982

1. H FTC findings are supported by substantial evidence, they are conclusive; and,
reasonable inferences drawn from facts based on substantial evidence may also be
conclusive. *

Findings of the Federal Trade Commission are conclusive if suppotted by substan-
tial evidence; additionally, reasonable inferences deawn from facts based upon substantial
¢vidence may support the findings. ’

2. Inference chosen by FTC was nut discredited by fact that two reasonable inferences
could be drawn from the evidence.

Fuct that two reasonable inferences could be drawn from the evidence did not detract
from the Fedcral Trade Commission's decision to choose one of those inferences,

3. Evidence that fairly detracts from FTC's findings must be taken into account on peti-
tion to review an FTC ocder, .

On penition to review an order of the Federal Trade Commission, the Court of Ap-
peals must take into account ¢vidence that fairly detracts from the Commission’s
findings, .

. 4. FTC must ascertain whether procedures employed by preparers of conpsumer credit

. reporis posed au unreasonable risk of producing ervor, in determining whether report-

ing agency violated FCRA by failing to follow *'reasonable procednrs {0 assure max- - i
imum possibie accaracy'’ of reported information. )

In determining whether a ¢redit reporting agency has violated provision of the Fair
Credit Reporting Act requiring the agency, whenever it prepares a cOnsumer report,
10 “‘follow ressonable pracedurcs to assure maximum possible accuracy of 1he infor-
mation concerning the individual about whom the report rclates,”” the essential task
of the Federal Trade Commission is to ascertain whether the pracedures followed by
the agency pose an unreasonable risk of producing error.

5. FTC finding that agency did not employ s ble procedures to assure maximum
passible zecuracy’ of credit reports would be set aside where evidentiary hakis Was
insuiticlent to support a rational inference that quality control andil procedurcs used
by agency, including the tabulation of adverse information, was likely to result In in-
accurate information.

Evidentiary basis was insufficient to support a rational infercnce that consumer report-
ing agency’'s quality control audit procedures, including the tabulation of adverse in-
formation and the agency's challenged use of that tabulation, would tikely result in
inaccurate information; accordingly, the Federal Trade Commission's finding that the
agency failed to use reasonable {1048] procedures to assurc maximum possible accuracy

*Reported in 678 F.2d 1047 (1982), For case vefore the Comemixsion, see 96 F.T.C. 844,
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in its consumer reparts, in violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, was not based
wpon reasonable inferences drawn from the record evidence and would be set aside.

On petition to review an order of the Federal Trade Commission, the Court

0\4}7 ‘\

of Appeals, Vande, Circuit Judge, held that the evidentiary basis was
insufficient to support 2 rational inference that consumer reporting
agency's quality control audit procedures, including the tabulation of
adverse information and the agency’s challenged use of that tabulation,
would likely result in inaccurate informgtion; accordingly, the Commis-
sion's finding that the agency failed 1o use reasonable procedures to agsure
maximum possible accuracy in its consumer reports, in violation of the
Fair Credit Reporting Act, was not based upon reasonable inferences

(Syllabus, with substituted captions, taken Jrom 678 F.2d 1047), Q"“‘"

Sutherland, Asbill & Brennan, Carey p. DeDeyn, Atlanta, Ga., Willis

B. Snell, Francis M. Gregory, Jr., Washington, D.C., for petitioner.

David C, Shonka, Bruce G, Freedman, Alexandra Buek, Washington,

D.C., for respondent.

1

Before FAY, VANCE and ARNOED** Circuit Judges.

VANCE, Circuir Judge:
This is a petition by Equifax Inc. 1o review a portion of a Final Qrder

to Cease and Desist issued by the Federal Trade Commission on December

5, 1980.' The Commission found that Bauif:

la-
tions of thé Fair Credit Reporting Aot (FCRA), 15 U.S.C. 88 1681-1681¢t.

Equifax challériges only one of the Commission’s findiggs: that Egquifax
failed 16 Wse reasonable procedures to assure maximum possible agcuracy

iriteonsumer Ter TEPOTis n violation of section 607(b) of the FCRA, 15USK.C.
§Te8TeBY.T
-'-'h-‘

T ————

**Honorable Richard §. Amold. U.S. Cireuit Judge for the Eighth Cireuit, situng by designation,
' The petition is before us for review pursvant 1o 1§ U.S.C. 88 45(0), 45td).
* In Puragraphs C ang D of Section Lof its order it enjoined Equitax from wiing specified actions 1o encqurdge produc.

tivn of adverse information Abour consumers or 1o rank fis erganizational units based an their production of such informa.
tion. The Wangunge of the Qrder was that Equifax was to ¢ease and desist from:

€. (1) Rewarding or punishing employecs, or reprosenning 10 employecs tha they wilk be vewarded or punished, on
the Basis of the amount of adverse information (i.e., information which maty have, or may reasonghly he enpeered 1o
have, ant udFavorable bearing on & consumer’s eligibilicy or qualificatian for ¢redit, insurance, employment or other
benefis. including infonmarion which may resoh, or which May reasonably be expocted to rosult, in & denial of. or in-
¢réased cans far such benefits) or the propurtion, or nurmnber, of Er rENONLs Or i & eonsumer reports
they prepare which cantain adverse information about or relating 1o (he Lonsumers who are subjects of said reporrs;
¥ , directly or ing Y. o produce & spocified number, or propartion, of reperts conlain

ing adverst information,

D. Using any sysiem of quality sudits or any other plan or procedure whereby the performancs of braneh offies,
regions, or ather nrganizational unizs, or individuals, with respect 10 1he production of advere informarion, is ranked
ugaingt that of othar organizational units or individuals, or ayains previous performance by the same organizalions)
unils o individuals,
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I. STATUTORY BACKGROUND

The stated purpose uf the FCRA is *‘to prevent consumers from being
unjustly damaged because of inaccurate or arbitrary information in a credit
report.””? Congress [1049] apparently recognized, however, that total ac-
curacy in consumer reports is not a realistic objective. Accordingly, sec-
tion 607(b) of the FCRA provides:

Whenever a consumer reporting agency prepares a consumer report it shall follow reasonable
procedures (o assure maximum possible accuracy of the information concerning the individual
about whom the rcport relates.

15 U.S.C. § 1681e(b).*

FCRA provides for two methods of enforcement: private daimage suits
brought under sections 616 and 617, 15 U.5.C. §§ 1681n, 16810, and ad-
ministrative actions under section 621, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681s. The present pro-
ceeding was brought before the Commission under the provisions of sec-

tion 621(a).’

' 8.Rep.No. 91-517, $1st Cong., 13t Sexs. } (1969). FCRA ituell L‘Onhuns ihe following statement of purpose:
It is the purpose of this subchapter 1o require that adopt for
the needs ol for credit, | and other information in a manner which is l'mr
and equitable 10 the consutmer, with regard (o the conlidontislity, ascurady. relevancy, and proper utilization of such
tion i dance with the : of this subck N
15 U.S.C. § 1681(b). Al the same time Congress made clear that FCRA wag 10 b a bal d latory scheme
that recoontees the vital role of consumer reporting agencics. The preceding provision of the same section states:
The Congress makes the following findings:
(1) The banking system is dependent upon fair and soaurate credn rcponmg. Inaseurate uedk oo dicoetly impair
the efficiency of the banking systam, and unfair credit dermine the public confidence which |s

jal to the inued functioning of the banking system.
(2) An elsburate mechanism has been developed for invextigating and ¢ ing the credit worthiness, credit stand-
ing, credil capacity, charac(cr « ahd gencrat reputmon of consumers. '
QX Ag Hgensied have A & vital rale in bling aad fuari grodit arxt Other
mformation on mnmmm
{d) There i3 3 need to insure that reporting i ise their grave ibilities with fai im-

partiatity, and a respect Tor the cossuimer™s right o privacy.
15 U.s.C. § 1681{a)
+ By contrast the Act rediuires that Ao dgeey “ridinlats stritt provedures™ for certain reports. 15 us.C. i 1681(2). The
' distinction is clearly not withoul sumlﬁctnu:

’ b«cuon 621(a) provides: . .
with (e réqui inPpostd undte this subchapter shall be saforeed under the Federal Trade Com-

misxion Act by the Federai Trade Commission with rexpect to ¢on:um¢r reparting agencies and allollm pearsons :ub,em
thereto, excepl to e extent that of the i S under this subck ificall
164 t0 36me Other ROVEKAMENT apency under subscction (b) hereol. For the purpose of the excraise by e chcta! Trade
Commission of its functions and powers under the Federat Trade C issian Agt, a viglation of any requi or
prohibition impused under this subchapter shall constitute an unfair or d ive act or ice ia in viola-
tion of section 45(a) of this title and shall be subject 16 énforcement by the Frederil Trade Commission under section
45(b) o! tlus title with respect {0 ny vonsuruer reporiing sgeacy oF person subject 4 enforcement by the Federal Trade
C to thix irrespective of whether that person is engaged in commerce or meets any other
;unsdlctmnul tests in the Feders) Trade Cnmrmmn Act. The Federal Trade Commission shatl have such procedutal.
ive, md powers, including the power to issue p durai rules in ' pli with the
posed under this subchap a.nd to require the filing of reports, the producuon of documents, and
:he anpearance of witnesses ax though the applicable termx and conditions of the Federal Trade Commission Act were
part of this subchupter. Any person violating any of the isions of thix xhall be subject ta the penalties

8al

and entitled to the privileses and immunities provided in the Federsl Trade Commission Act as though the appiicable
termx and provisions thereof were purt of 1his subchapter.
5 U.S.C. § 1681sa).
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former Equifax employces, testifjed and several thousand pages of exhibiig
were received. The Administrative Law Judge (hereinafter YALI'™) made
his initial decision on November | 1, 1977, concluding that Equifax violated
section 607(b). The findiqgs of the ALT were summarized by him in part
as follows: ‘

The record does nor demonstrate gn overall pattern of OVELT sunctions such as firings or
the withholding of salary increases or Promotions as penalties for the failure to achieve specific
levels of [adverse] information, The pressures as fap 3 can be determined from this record,
were generally more subtle: for example, achievemeny in production of [adverse] information
a8 measured by the audiry was one factor considered i connection with manageriat incentive
bonuses and field Tepresentatives put down the objective of achieving particulgr bercentages
of [adverse] infocmation on thejr personal appraisal forms, And, tield répresentatives’ per.
formance on the quality audits was one factor among severat to be considered in salacy recom.
mendations by the branch manager.

{Initial Decision of ALJ, p. 238 (footnotes omitted),

The ALJ also recognized, however, that Equifax’s quality control is not
limited to the tabulation of agverse information. It alse involves the selec-
tion and training of its field tépresentatives, and their instructions requir.
ing scrupuloys honesty and fairness. Equifax conducts periodic quality
audits of each branch office to check performance and the integrity of their

communicated [1051] to the field and is generally carried oy, Although

as to others, broadened his order with TeSPECt to the questions now before
this court and otherwise adopted hijs decision, findings and conclusions.

A procedure which encourages the production of adverse informarion is likely to lead
cmployees to prepare their reports i 4 mannet detrimental to the legitimate interegy of the

Sep. 12 1995 1@:86AM P16
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k : P . -
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clusive if they are supporred by substantia] evidence. Additionally,
reasonable inferonces drawn from facrs based upon substantia] evidence
inay supf{1052]pore the findingg, See Colonial Stores, Inc., v, FTC, 450 F.24

however, evidence that fairly detracts from the Com
Universgl Camerg Corp. v, NLRB,
98 L.Ed, 456 (1951);
337 (5th Cir. 1980),

have specifically reserved the question whether the agency r
the risk of error manifested jtself in concrete instances of detriment to the
however, the FrC attempted mightily 10
discover whether the quality contro) procedure resuited in actual ‘inac-
curacies, This attempt formed part of an enormous investigation, national
in scope, extending over two Years with hundreds of witnesses and thousands
of pages of documents, The investigation failed to produce any substantial
evidence of inaccuracies ip the production of adverse information,'* |; is
hot reasonable to conclude that a procedure which produces no evidence

- The revord before ys does not contain a complete transeript of Icstimony or exhibiss. We find the Commission's own

findings and unchillenged fyceiat UISEITIOnRS of the Paties to be sufticicnt for pyr devision,

* Withous iRPproving iy ALss finding, the Commission ragiicd thag ©8¢ wilness had giveq testimony that mighg be

conkidered 3y subsiantial Svidengs
+ 5H-11 & n. 28 ¢5th Cir, 1950).

Sonsidercd contrary, Even if thiy be considered a finding by the Commission it caonot be
in the context of thxe entire record. Soe, ¢.g., Southiond Mower Co. V. CPSC, 619 £,2d o

12 1995 1@:08aM P18
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